
 
To:      The Cathaoirleach and Each Member of the Boyle Municipal District 
 
Date:  Monday, 15 September 2025 
 
Re:      Notice of Boyle Municipal District Meeting 
 
 
 
 
Dear Cathaoirleach & Members, 
 
Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the Boyle Municipal District will be held in the Boyle Municipal 
Office - Boyle MD Offices on Friday, 19th September, 2025 at 2.30 pm to discuss the agenda set out 
below.  
 
You are hereby requested to attend. 
  
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Ivor Kilcline  
Boyle Municipal District CoOrdinator  
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
PAIDIR 

A G E N D A 
 
1.   Disclosure of Conflict of Interest (Section 177 of the Local Government Act 2001  as amended) 
2.   Adoption of the Minutes 

 Minutes of Boyle MD meeting on 18th July 2025. 
3.   Matters Arising 
4.   EIRGRID North West Connacht 
5.   Notices Of Motion M5.25 Cllr T Crosby; M6.25 Cllr S Moylan; M7.25 Cllr L Cull 

M5.25  Cllr Tom Crosby - Motion 
That Roscommon County Council prioritise the immediate provision of a footpath and public 
lighting along Ballytoohey Road, which serves four large housing estates, numerous one-off 
houses, and provides a vital link between the village and the local national school. This matter has 
been raised for several years without progress, despite over €70,000 having been spent in 
2003/2004 on the preparation of plans and related works. In the interests of road and pedestrian 
safety the Council now resolves to advance this project as a matter of urgency. 
 
M6.25  Cllr. Sean Moylan - Motion  
 I call on Roscommon Co. Co. to make every effort, to acquire the small parcel of land that is 

Public Document Pack



available free of charge beside Kilmore Graveyard, as soon as possible. 
 
M7.25 Cllr. Leah Cull – Motion 
I propose that Roscommon County Council undertake road safety measures on the R361 
(Frenchpark road out of Boyle) 
 
The increasing traffic flow and safety concerns expressed by local residents have highlighted the 
urgent need for improved safety measures. This should include: 
 
- A continuous white line marking outside Kingsland NS 
- 50-kilometer signage at the appropriate location 
- Speed indicator sign as you approach Silveroe Estate 

6.   Questions Q2.25 Cllr T Crosby; Q3.25 Cllr S Moylan; Q4.25 Cllr L Cull; Q5.25 Cllr L Cull 
Q2.25  Cllr Tom Crosby 
Will the Director of Services inform the meeting of the total amount of development charges 
collected from the seven housing estates in Tarmonbarry Village? 
 
Q3.25 Cllr. Sean Moylan  
Do the council have any indication if the new N5 will be opened together, or will it be opened in 
sections as it becomes available, and if so any timeline as to when the first section will be open? 
 
Q4.25 Cllr. Leah Cull 
There was some discussion 2/3 years ago regarding the construction of a cycle way from Cootehall 
village to the national school, but it never materialised. Could you please inform me if there are 
any future plans for this? 
 
Q5.25 Cllr. Leah Cull 
I had a motion in some time ago regarding installing chevron signs at Strabragin NS Arigna R280 
and the railway bridge on the R294 Gurteen road in Boyle - Is there any update on this? 

7.   Votes of Congratulations/Sympathy 
8.   Civic Nominations Request Approval 
9.   A O B 
 



1 

 

DRAFT MINUTES OF Boyle Municipal District HELD IN THE Boyle Municipal Office - Boyle MD Offices 
ON Friday, 18th July, 2025 AT 2.30 PM 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Sean Moylan          PRESIDED 
 
MEMBERS: Cllr L. Cull, Cllr M. Frain, Cllr T. Crosby and Cllr V. Byrne. 
 
OFFICIALS: Gerardine Lafferty, Staff Officer 

Anthony McDermott, Executive Engineer 
 
Apologies: Cllr L. Callaghan. 
 
11.25 DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST (SECTION 177 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2001  AS 

AMENDED) 
There were no Disclosures of Conflict of Interest declared by Members. 
 
12.25 ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Michéal Frain 
             SECONDED by Councillor Tom Crosby 
It was AGREED to adopt the Minutes of the Boyle Municipal District meeting of 23rd May 2025. 
 
 
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Tom Crosby 
             SECONDED by Councillor Leah Cull 
It was AGREED to adopt the Minutes of the Boyle Municipal District Annual General Meeting of 27th June 
2025. 
 
 
13.25 MATTERS ARISING 
Cllr. Valerie Byrne apologised for not being able to attend the last meeting.  She wished to express her 
thanks to Cllr. Tom Crosby in his role as Cathaoirleach for previous year and to congratulate Cllr. Sean 
Moylan on his election as Cathaoirleach for 2025-2026.   
 
14.25 SECTION 11 (2) (B) OF THE ROADS ACT 1993 AND ROADS REGULATIONS 1994, PART 2 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2000 (AS AMENDED), SECTION 180 LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
REFORM ACT 2014 SCHEDULE 3  
DECLARATION OF PUBLIC ROAD WITHIN THE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

  
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Michéal Frain 

             SECONDED by Councillor Valerie Byrne 

It was AGREED that Section 11 (2) (b) of the Roads Act 1993 and Roads Regulations 1994, Part 2 Planning 
and Development Act 2000 (as amended), Section 180 Local Government Reform Act 2014 Schedule 3 
Declaration of public road within the housing development at The Fairgreen Frenchpark be ADOPTED. 
  
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Leah Cull 
             SECONDED by Councillor Tom Crosby 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.25



2 

It was AGREED that Section 11 (2) (b) of the Roads Act 1993 and Roads Regulations 1994, Part 2 Planning 
and Development Act 2000 (as amended), Section 180 Local Government Reform Act 2014 Schedule 3 
Declaration of public road within the housing development at Foxwood Manor, Boyle be ADOPTED. 
  
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Valerie Byrne 

             SECONDED by Councillor Tom Crosby 

It was AGREED that Section 11 (2) (b) of the Roads Act 1993 and Roads Regulations 1994, Part 2 Planning 
and Development Act 2000 (as amended), Section 180 Local Government Reform Act 2014 Schedule 3 
Declaration of public road within the housing development at Bramble Hill, Boyle be ADOPTED. 
  
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Leah Cull 
             SECONDED by Councillor Valerie Byrne 

It was AGREED that Section 11 (2) (b) of the Roads Act 1993 and Roads Regulations 1994, Part 2 Planning 
and Development Act 2000 (as amended), Section 180 Local Government Reform Act 2014 Schedule 3 
Declaration of public road within the housing development at Silveroe, Boyle be ADOPTED. 
  
Members welcomed the taking in charge of these estates and progress made.  The following was 
discussed: 

        To extend list to North of County and the importance of obtaining funding for taking these estates 
over. 

        Members complimented Council staff on the work put into getting these estates in charge.  

        Challenges with water connections, road finishes, etc. in some estates. 

        The difficulty in getting estates taken in charge.  More funding needed from Central Government to 
deal with issues like bonds, way leaves, etc. The majority of these estates are in the Boyle MD.  

        As an MD to look for funding now for estates to be taken in charge while resources are still 
available.  Emphasis should be on affordable housing as much as social housing.  Allow people to 
live in their own locality. 

        A Motion to be placed before the Plenary Meeting requesting a budget allocation for estates to be 
taken in charge. 

  
On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Tom Crosby 

             SECONDED by Councillor Michéal Frain 

It was AGREED that an amended Section 23 scheme to incentivise home building would be introduced. 
  
  
 On the PROPOSAL of Councillor Valerie Byrne 

             SECONDED by Councillor Sean Moylan 

It was AGREED that a letter would issue to the Department of Housing, Local Government & Heritage from 
Roscommon Co. Council requesting additional funding for estates to be taken in charge. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
15.25 NOTICES OF MOTION 

Page 2



3 

I call on the council to do any planned maintenance work on the N61 while it is closed, and for us to 
request that the TII do the same, and fast track any surfacing work etc. that they may have planned. 
 This will help minimise inconvenience on the road when it reopens. 
 
 
Response: 
 
Boyle MD are currently completing as much maintenance works as possible during the road closure. 
 
Mr. Anthony McDermott confirmed that every opportunity will be taken to carry out maintenance works 
while the N61 is closed. 
 
Members supported the motion and made the following points: 
 

 The issues surrounding the Clashganny section of the N61 and the current difficulties with that 
scheme. There were calls for emergency legislation to be put in place to ensure schemes like this 
are successfully completed. 

 
 
16.25 QUESTIONS 
There were no questions for today’s meeting. 
 
17.25 VOTES OF CONGRATULATIONS/SYMPATHY 
A vote of congratulations was extended to Cllr. Liam Callaghan on the marriage of his daughter Aisling 
recently. 
 
A vote of congratulations was extended to Cllr. Michéal Frain on his election as Cathaoirleach of the 
Northern & Western Regional Assembly. 
 
 
18.25 CIVIC RECEPTION NOMINATIONS 
Cllr. Valerie Byrne to propose a group for the Civic Reception at next September’s meeting. 
 
19.25 AOB 
The following issues were raised: 
 
Needs Analysis for Boyle Childcare facility 
At MD level, identify Council-owned land suitable for site of facility – to discuss further at next meeting. 
Option of Community Regeneration Funding – look at long-term lease of multi-use facility – use as match 
funding rather than green field site. 
 
Additional Funding for Graveyards: The development of a Columbarium Wall at new Elphin Graveyard. 
Each grave is consecrated so graveyard is open to all denominations.  
Compliments to Assylinn Graveyard Committee on the works carried out there which have transformed the 
graveyard. 
 
Boyle Tidy Towns Committee was commended for its work in preparing the town for the Boyle Arts 

Page 3



4 

Festival.   
 
Public Realm Strokestown 
In advance of project commencing, there will be a meeting with the Heritage Group in Percy French Hotel, 
Strokestown on Monday 21st at 2.30pm.  Boyle MD councillors are asked to attend. 
 
NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be on Friday, 19th September, 2025. 
 
This concluded the business of the meeting.  
 
The foregoing Minutes are  
Confirmed and Signed: 
Ivor Kilcline 
__________________________ 
Meetings Administrator                 
 
 

 _____________________  
                            Cathaoirleach   
 ______________________ 
 Countersigned 

Page 4


	Agenda
	2.25 Adoption of the Minutes

